Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of February 22, 2023
Page 3

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

Wednesday, February 22, 2023
6:00PM
Cloverleaf Farm Room A
10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER
The virtual meeting was called to order by Mayor Sanders at 6:00PM.
ROLL CALL

PRESENT:  Mayor Tim Sanders, Councilmembers Terra Fleming, Chris Massoglia, Tom Newland, and Lori Saroya.
ABSENT:  Councilmember Jess Robertson. 

Quorum Present.

 

ALSO PRESENT:  City Manager Michelle Wolfe; Community Development Director Eric Thorvig; City Planner Sheila Sellman; Safety Services Director/Police Chief Brian Podany; Finance Director Joe Huss; Deputy Finance Director Alison Bong; City Engineer Dan Schluender; Deputy Public Works Director Nick Fleischhacker; City Attorney Tom Loonan; Administrative Services Director Cassandra Tabor; Senior Parks and Recreation Manager Jerome Krieger; Parks & Recreation Manager Nate Monahan; Communications Manager Ben Hayle; and City Clerk Catherine Sorensen.
3.1
Proposed Municipal State Aid Route Revisions.

City Engineer Schluender stated each year cities submit an Annual Certification of Mileage to MnDOT’s State Aid office. Based on this annual certification State Aid cities are allowed to designate 20% of their total street mileage as Municipal State Aid (MSA) routes. State aid cities are required to update their 25-year construction needs annually. As part of this update cities may designate new MSA routes or revoke existing routes in their systems. MSA route designations determine the distribution of MSA funds to state aid cities. The calculation is typically weighted on the volume of a street’s average daily trips (ADT). Based on our City’s Annual Certification of Mileage we have 4.42 miles to designate. Staff also proposes to revoke one route (121st Avenue) which has a lower ADT and use this mileage on other local streets that have higher ADT. Staff has reviewed our current state aid street designations, traffic volumes on our MSA and local system, and is recommending the changes. Staff reviewed the changes in detail with the Council and requested feedback. 
Councilmember Fleming requested further information on how State Aid funding works. Mr. Schluender described how the state holds funding for the City and reimburses the City after projects are completed. 
Councilmember Newland asked if MSA streets have certain weight and speed limit restrictions. Mr. Schluender reported all MSA and City streets were built to a 10-ton standard. He commented the speed limit for MSA’s were designed for 30 mile per hour streets. 

Councilmember Massoglia questioned how staff determined which roadways should be MSA’s. Mr. Schluender stated this is based on trips per day or overall volume of traffic. He noted this information is analyzed every four years.
Council consensus was to support the proposed revisions as presented.
3.2
Proposed Municipal State Aid Route Revisions.

Mr. Schluender stated the City of Circle Pines has requested that the City of Blaine add 87th Avenue from Lexington Avenue (CSAH 17) to the eastern City limits to its Municipal State Aid (MSA). Due to certain rules in designating MSA routes for Circle Pines to add the 87th Ave/Canterbury Road to their MSA system they would need to Blaine to also add this segment to its system. Blaine has 0.36 miles of additional mileage to designate as MSA routes after the previous proposed revisions. The proposed section of 87th Avenue would add another 0.25 miles. Staff reviewed the proposed change with the Council and requested feedback.
Councilmember Newland stated he supported the proposed connection.
Council consensus was to support the proposed revisions as presented.
3.3
2022 Accomplishments and 2023 Goals and Projects.

City Manager Wolfe stated staff would be presenting the 2022 department accomplishments to the Council.
Administrative Services Director Tabor explained three bargaining unit contracts were completed prior to 2022. She discussed the updated Blaine personnel policy that was launched and commented on the benefits of this new policy. She reported the wellness committee and safety committee made great strides in the previous year. She commented on the two elections that were held and thanked all the community members that served as election judges. Lastly, she discussed the community service efforts from her department. 

Community Development Director Thorvig reviewed the efforts from the economic development, planning and building inspections departments. He commented on the progress that was being made on the Council’s redevelopment priority areas. He discussed the work that was done on the subdivision ordinance and explained staff would continually be reviewing City code going forward. He stated staff had a successful year promoting the City, which included the efforts at the 3M Open. He reported staff continues business recruitment efforts along with Mayor Sanders and Councilmember Robertson. He indicated the building inspection department remains busy, noting almost 5,000 permits and 24,000 inspections were completed last year. 
Finance Director Huss reviewed the accomplishments from 2022 for the finance department. He discussed the fleet right sizing study that was completed and the recommendations that were implemented. He commented on the ARPA plan that was reviewed and approved by the Council. The City’s new payroll system and utility billing systems benefits were discussed. In addition, he was proud of the fact the City has maintained its AAA bonding rating. He commented on the efforts of the IT department and commended them for their tremendous efforts in 2022. 
Councilmember Massoglia requested an update from staff on the City’s organics recycling program along with feedback on the fleet right sizing study. Mr. Huss stated he would gather information on the organics program and would report back to the Council at a future meeting. He reported the progress being made with the fleet right sizing program would be brought back to the Council in March or April. 
Deputy Public Works Director Nick Fleischhacker commented on the fleet right sizing study in further detail noting this was a guiding document for his department. He discussed the five-year CIP that was drafted by his department and explained this document would assist with planning for the future. He noted treatment plant 4 was brought online in 2022 which would greatly assist with providing water throughout the City. 

Councilmember Newland thanked the Public Works Department for their efforts to clear the City from the recent storm. 

Mr. Schluender reported in 2022 the engineering department created a dos and don’ts program for the City’s stormwater ponds. He explained 8.8 miles of City streets were completed. He commented on the strides that were being made on TH65, noting an additional $29 million was secured for the project. 
Safety Services Director/Police Chief Podany commented on the facilities management changes that were made in 2022. He discussed the work that was done with the housing inspectors. He noted an all-staff meeting was held in 2022 within the department and he received a lot of great feedback from this event. He commented on the efforts of the embedded mental health worker and the community outreach officer. He explained the department has a new records management program and saw several retirements. He discussed the safety assessment that was completed on the City hall building. He reviewed the City’s part 1 and part 2 crimes in comparison to the state, stating he was proud to see the community’s crime numbers trending down. 
Senior Parks and Recreation Manager Krieger explained there was a record year of rentals at MAYC in 2022. He noted the specialty meals and programming has increased at MAYC with great success. He reported Octoberfest was a great event in 2022, along with the music in the park events. He reviewed the park improvements that were completed last year at Happy Acres, Centennial Green, Territorial Park, the Lexington Athletic Complex, and along Sunrise Trail. He thanked the Council for their continued support of the parks department. 
Mayor Sanders thanked staff for their dedicated work on behalf of the City and for all that was accomplished in 2022.
Other Business
4.1
TH65 Update.
Mr. Schluender explained the City was not successful on the mega grant. He reported the City has other opportunities they would be pursuing for TH65. The efforts of the City’s lobbyists were discussed. He commented further on the project schedule for TH65. 
4.2
Review Water Restrictions Signage.
Mr. Schluender explained the City would be purchasing 100 water restriction signs for posting throughout the community this summer. 
City Clerk Sorensen reported Planning Commission interviews would be held on February 27 then noted new Council meeting times would begin March 6. 
The Workshop was adjourned at 7:25PM.








Tim Sanders, Mayor

ATTEST:

Catherine Sorensen, CMC, City Clerk
Submitted by Minute Maker Secretarial 
